Jeffrey Tapper (right) accepts his diploma from President H. Melone Turner (left) at the University of Baltimore's 46th Annual Commencement exercises held recently at the Baltimore Civic Center. Mr. Tapper received his Bachelor of Arts degree from the University's college of Liberal Arts and was one of the 1,100 graduates honored at the commencement.
Tonight, as we embark on a new generation of careers, we should anticipate a world of our own making. But in discovering that world, we must contribute to the needs of this troubled world.

Each tomorrow shall witness the birth of new crises and crises demand choice, decision, and change. Change is the essential process of all existence. Our philosophy is not to preserve stagnation but to perform and function through the strength we have acquired from the knowledge received in our academic lives. Knowledge is power—and when this energy called power is given proper direction, i.e., transcended into wisdom, only then can we hope to conquer the four ancient enemies that afflict our present world: ignorance, illiteracy, disease, and bigotry. This new generation that I speak of has been given the tools with which to combat these adversaries. As ambassadors and statesmen possessed of knowledge our pantheon shall include equality of opportunity and peace with justice.

We represent our parents’ tomorrows. They have taught us so well that there is no substitute for skill, wisdom, and goodness of heart. So let us temper our judgment, for occasions will arise when we must submit to the dictates of the heart.

Having witnessed not only the growth and development of our intellect, the University of Baltimore has taught us much more than the arts, sciences, and the law. The University has demonstrated to all who cross its threshold that we are here not to imitate, but rather to create.

As graduates of the University of Baltimore we realize that we represent only a small part of the whole as there are many other graduates of colleges and universities from across the nation, and around the world. And so together now, we shall make the step from formal education as we know it and pass into a learning experience whereby we are afforded an opportunity to practice the two tests of greatness—humility and humanity—so that our children may have a better world in which to live.

All of us have the ability to think.

And, if ever there should come a time when we doubt or falter in our contributing attempt to practice those two omnipotent tests, let us recall the legions of enlightened hours spent at the University of Baltimore, and lastly, the concluding stanza of that intense poem “Think and Grow Rich”; if I may interpolate:

Life’s battles don’t always go To the stronger or faster or most gifted of men But soon or late the man who wins Is the man who thinks he can.
New Liberal Arts Faculty For Fall

Dean Lawrence D. Bridgham of the College of Liberal Arts has announced the appointment of Dr. Laslo V. Boyd as Assistant Professor in the University's Department of Political Science, Historical Studies Division, for the 1973-1974 academic year.

Dr. Boyd comes to the University from Mayor William Donald Schaefer's office where he worked as an Administrative Aide for Development Research. He has studied International Affairs at the U.S. Air Force Academy in Colorado and earned his A.B. degree in Political Science at George Washington University. Dr. Boyd received his Ph.D. in International Relations at the University of Pennsylvania. While studying for his Ph.D., he was awarded a four-year fellowship and received a travel grant for research in Great Britain.

Dr. Boyd interned at the U.S. Department of State and the U.S. House of Representatives during the summers of 1965, 1966, and 1967. In the past several years, Dr. Boyd has authored several studies in the periodical *Government Executive*. Dr. Boyd will begin as Assistant Professor at the University on September 1.

In addition to Dr. Boyd, two dynamic women are included in the list of new faculty appointments for the College of Liberal Arts for the 1973-1974 academic year. Dr. Hanora M. O'Sullivan and Dr. Doris Powell will begin teaching at the University in September.

Dr. O'Sullivan has been appointed an Assistant Professor in the Speech and Drama Department, Humanities Division. Dr. O'Sullivan earned her B.A. degree cum laude at Marymount College as a History major, and her M.A. at Ohio State University. She was a candidate for the Master's degree in the Graduate School of History at the University of Delaware and she earned her Ph.D. at the University of Michigan's Graduate School of Speech, majoring in Communications.

Dr. O'Sullivan was an instructor and director of Forensics and other related communication studies at

Continued on page 14

Part of Our Neighbors Destiny

Dr. Elaine C. Davis, outstanding educational and civic leader and Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Maryland State Colleges and acting educational assistant to the Superintendent of the Baltimore City Public Schools, was the Commencement speaker for the University of Baltimore graduation exercises held Wednesday, June 6th, at the Baltimore Civic Center. Commencement exercises for the 1100 plus graduates of the downtown University began at 8 p.m. on Wednesday night.

Dr. Davis, who holds a B.S. degree from Coppin State College, a B.S. from Morgan State College, an LL.B. from the University of Maryland, and an M.Ed. and Ph.D. from the Johns Hopkins University, has been a part of the Baltimore City Public School System since 1942 serving in various capacities as teacher, vice principal, curriculum supervisor, and Director of the Model Cities Pilot Schools Project. Recently named to head the Board of Trustees of the Maryland State Colleges, Dr. Davis has served on that Board since 1970 as its Vice Chairman. She is also currently serving on the Board of Directors of the United Nations Association of Maryland and is a National Vice President in the Phi Lambda Theta Honor Society in Education. She is also Chairman of the Sub-Committee on Education and Counseling of the Governor's Committee on the Status of Women.

Dr. Davis addressed the graduates of the University's School of Business, College of Liberal Arts, and School of Law. During her address, she urged the graduates to remember: We are part of our neighbor's destiny. We can help him or hurt him, humiliate or praise him, notice or ignore, degrade or upgrade him. It is the right of every American to enjoy quality education."

President Turner also addressed the crowd and read greetings to the graduates from Governor Marvin Mandel. Senator Verda Welcome and State Comptroller Louis L. Goldstein were in attendance for the event.

The president also cited the retirements of Mrs. Mary L. Thomas, assistant professor of English, Mr. Arthur C. Lund, instructor of French and Spanish, and Dean of the Business School Harry P. Watson.
University of Baltimore S.B.A Officers Elected

Second year law student Kathleen Sweeney was elected S.B.A. vice president. A graduate of Notre Dame Preparatory School of Towson and Dunbarton College of Holy Cross in Washington, D.C., Miss Sweeney is presently employed as a law clerk for the Department of Licensing and Regulation for the State of Maryland. She has served previously as a member of the Young Democrats from 1968-1972 and as a member of the University's Steering Committee for the Law School.

Named treasurer of the student organization is Eugene A. Walsh who is presently a second semester second year law student. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting from Loyola College of Baltimore and hopes to concentrate his practice in corporate and probate law.

University of Baltimore S.B.A Officers Elected

Named student representative to the University's Senate is C. Tony Bruce, also a second year law student. With an undergraduate degree in Government and Politics from the University of Maryland, College Park, Mr. Bruce is a member of the Phi Alpha Delta law fraternity and the Somerset County Farm Bureau.

School of Business Gets New Staff

The University of Baltimore's School of Business has recently named a new Assistant Dean, Francis A. Cooch III, from Alexandria, Virginia. Dr. Cooch, who retires as Colonel from the United States Army in June, has his D.B.A. from George Washington University (1972), his M.B.A. from Syracuse University (1953), and his B.S. from the U.S. Military Academy (1944). He has also received a certificate of completion in the Advanced Management program at Harvard University in 1968. His primary fields of study are accounting, administrative theory and practice, and managerial economics.

Dr. Cooch served previously both in the Office of Assistant Secretary of the Army in Financial Management and the Office of Undersecretary of the Army. He has taught accounting, business statistics, business finance and principles of economics at the University of Maryland Far East Division, Republic of Vietnam. In addition, he was an instructor of national strategic military planners, at the U.S. Naval War College in Rhode Island. The 49 year old Assistant Dean also served for some time as comptroller for the Military Assistance Command Vietnam.

The twenty four year old newsman previously worked for the Baltimore City Police department, and, preceding that, from June 1966 to May 1969, he served overseas (Korea) in the United States Army. While in Korea, Quickley was introduced to media work when he served as an announcer and air talent for the Southern European Network for the Armed Forces Radio—Europe. With the AFRE, he not only directed news coverage, but was responsible for various public appearances and network production as well.

The native of Baltimore who graduated from City College, has taken courses at American University in Washington, D.C., the University of Maryland, Baltimore County, and he is currently enrolled in a pre-law program as a history major at the University of Baltimore.

UB Appoints Newsman

The University has named Arnold A. Quickley, former WBAL television reporter/anchorman, to head the university's sports information program.

Prior to his work at WBAL-TV, Quickley directed the news programming and air talent for WSID radio station. In that capacity, he supervised the preparation and production of news broadcasts, managed the music direction for on-the-air presentations, and assisted with the community relations program as well.

The University of Baltimore School of Law held its annual election for officers of the University's Student Bar Association recently. The five winners emerged from a slate of 14 possible candidates elected by the entire School of Law student community.

Elected president of the Student Bar Association is Barton F. Walker III, a junior in the University's Law School. Mr. Walker attended the University of Maryland undergraduate school both in the far east (while stationed in Taiwan) and at the College Park Campus, prior to graduating from that school in 1970, with a B.A. in Business Administration, and a minor in Economics and Government. He was employed by the Marriott Corporation as the assistant director of dietetics before he entered law school in 1971. He has held various positions in the University of Baltimore including treasurer of the Student Bar Association, a representative on the Student's Rights Committee, and as a student instructor for the first year orientation board. He is a member of the Phi Delta Theta national fraternity, and the ABA/LSD.

Also, Donald L. Rosenberg, and Lawrence R. Pearl have been appointed full time faculty members in the School of Business beginning this fall, according to Dr. Harry A. McGuff, Dean of that School.

Mr. Rosenberg, who is a certified public accountant of the State of Maryland, received his Masters of Business Administration from the University of Maryland in June of 1972. Prior to that he received his Bachelor of Science at College Park as well. He is currently pursuing doctoral studies leading to a degree of Doctor of Business Administration, and teaching accounting at Howard University. The 23 year old native of Baltimore is a member of The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Lawrence R. Pearl comes to the University from a position as a teaching fellow in the Department of Economics at Towson University. He is currently a candidate for his Ph.D. in Economics and holds an M.A. from Pennsylvania State University and Bachelor of Science from the University of Maryland (in 1967). Prior to his position at the University of Houston he had been appointed N.D.E.A. Fellow from 1967-1969. As an instructor at the University his special fields will be monetary theory, economic theory, international trade, and comparative economic systems.
Virginia Stewart, of the office of student affairs, gets a special thanks for her efforts throughout the year.

UB Awards Banquet Held

Approximately 300 people were on hand as the University of Baltimore held its annual Merit Awards Banquet and dinner recognizing student leaders recently at the downtown Hilton Hotel. The banquet featured presentations of both athletic and academic awards to graduating seniors and outstanding undergraduates.

The President's Award to the outstanding senior of the year was presented by University President H. Mebane Turner to Rudolph R. Hill Jr. for his high leadership and scholarship as well as his "achievements in community service". Receiving the President's Fellowship Award was Dennis Jaworski, who also received the Silver Key Award for his contributions to student life as an undergraduate. The Dean's Award from the University's College of Liberal Arts was presented to Farhana Mislovsy while the Dean of the School of Business Award went to Dalton A. Tong.

A special presentation was made to the faculty advisor of the year Calvin H. Lott Jr., professor of History at the University. The Junior Kela Memorial Award, presented annually to the senior who is top scholar athlete for the year, went to Vincent A. Tallarico, and the John R. Spellisy Award for "outstanding student services" went to Sheldon Freed.


A special award for those students that combine extra-curricular achievement with scholastic ability receive the school's Sigma Alpha Omicron Award and they were: Mark E. Beil, Ben Bowyer, Edward F. Dudzinski, Richard G. Greene, Stuart H. Luiz, Rona K. Perman, Mary Jane Posluszny, Frederick M. Santiago, Howard J. Siegel, and Joseph M. Zaborsky.

Named as unsung heroes in their individual sport were Tim Nickel, Soccer; Tom Blaney, Basketball; Bill Weber, Wrestling; Joe King, Baseball; Joe Jankiewicz, Golf. Most Valuable Players Awards went to varsity athletes Rick Metlandick, Soccer; Fran Janrogowicz, Basketball; Bob Berry, Wrestling; Ken Masimini, Baseball; and Jim Kirby, Golf.
UB Takeover Approved By State

On April 5, the House of Delegates passed senate bill No. 586 which provides for the University to become part of the state college system in January of 1975.

The House passed the bill 105-8, the senate followed with its final approval and the Governor signed the bill into law on May 24, 1973.

Enrollment Up

With the beginning summer session this year, the University experienced a unique reversal in trends. With the registration for the summer sessions up approximately 20% over the 1972 sessions, the University listed over 1900 students enrolled (not counting late registration or transfers) as opposed to 1600 one year ago.

Bee Lines

The University community was saddened by the sudden death of Mr. Valentine E. Sherring, Assistant Professor in the Department of Political Science for the past 13 years. Mr. Sherring, who was born in Agra, India, became a United States citizen in 1961, was a graduate of Lucknow University in Lucknow, India. He received his L.T. (Licentiate of Teaching) from the Government Training College, Allahabad, India and in 1949, he earned his B.D. degree from Garrett Biblical Institute in Evanston, Illinois. There is an effort now on the part of a number of alumni and students to initiate a scholarship fund in Mr. Sherring’s name. If anyone would like more information on this, contact the University’s Office of Public Information.

Mr. Peter Fitz was promoted from an Instructor to an Assistant Professor in the Department of English.

Dr. Brian Kritt has been promoted from an Assistant Professor to Associate Professor and is now a member of the School of Business faculty and he will assume duties of Chairman of the Department of Quantitative Studies; He will also continue to act as Chairman of the Mathematics Department of the College of Liberal Arts.

Dr. Welford C. Robinson, Jr. has been promoted from an Assistant Professor to Associate Professor in the Department of Sociology.

Mr. Philip Chapman, Instructor and Chairman of the Speech and Drama Department was selected as an Outstanding Educator of America for 1973.

Mr. Ralph W.E. Jones, Jr., Associate Professor and Director of the Recreation and Leisure Studies Department, has been reappointed for a three year term on the Board of Examiners for the Maryland Recreation and Parks Society, and has agreed to serve on the Professional Standards Committee for the Maryland Recreation and Parks Societies for 1973-1974.

Mr. Lawrence W. Markert, Instructor in the Department of English has been named as Co-ordinator of the Writing Program in this Department.

Dr. Jerome Rubin, Assistant Professor and formerly Director of the Counseling and Guidance Center is now a full-time member of the Psychology faculty and will also be teaching in the Mathematics Department; he will continue to plan the Master’s Program in Social Insurance, and will maintain immediate direction of it.

Mr. Arthur C. Lund, Assistant Professor in the Department of History and previously with Eastern College, has retired.

Mrs. Mary Thomas, Assistant Professor in the Department of English has retired; but we should add, Mrs. Thomas did not limit herself to the classroom; she also assisted with work connected with the Alumni office and the Yearbook, and other social events. We are happy to say that Mrs. Thomas will be teaching part-time in the future.

We wish both Mr. Lund and Mrs. Thomas a very happy and relaxed retirement!
Urban Center Opened

With the traditional ribbon-cutting ceremony, the University opened its Baltimore Region Institutional Study Center at 12 W. Madison Street on April 10, culminating three years of concentrated research and effort. The first of its kind in the Baltimore Metropolitan Area, it is a facility at which teachers, students, planners, and others engaged in institutional research can find in a single location some of the primary sources relating to workings of local commissions and agencies. Cutting the ribbon at the opening was Eliott Lieberman of the City Planning Department and Chairman of the BRISC Advisory Committee.

To provide a nucleus of data for the Center, the University has, over the past several years, collected thousands of files, reports, and records from the archives of a number of important organizations in the Baltimore area. To expand the collection and keep it up to date the University has established a system by which current records will be supplied to BRISC on a monthly basis. Using an urban vocabulary extracted from the Library of Congress catalogue, these materials are recorded with the use of a computer which provides organizational and subject listings. In addition, a supportive collection of 5000 volumes dealing with urban planning and development has been acquired by the University's Langsdale Library.

The new facility occupies 6000 square feet of Madison Hall at 12 W. Madison Street. It is administered by Dr. W. Theodore Durr whose field is the history and sociology of urban institutions. Dr. Durr is also Chairman of the University's Department of Sociology. BRISC's Assistant Director is reference librarian Adele Newburger.

Organizations cooperating with BRISC for reference and retrieval include: The Greater Baltimore Committee, United Fund, Maryland State Commission on Government Efficiency and Economy, the Citizens Planning and Housing Association, the Maryland Council of Churches, Planned Parenthood of Maryland, the Maryland Human Relations Commission, the Maryland Conference of Social Welfare, and the Health and Welfare Council of Central Maryland.
Mruck Addresses History Conference

Dr. Armin Mruck of Towson State College was the guest speaker when the University of Baltimore hosted the Phi Alpha Theta Honorary History Society Regional Conference on Saturday, April 28 at the downtown university’s Langsdale Library.

He himself experienced the effect of the Nazis’ propaganda campaigns.

Approximately 200 students and faculty involved in the society attended the all day conference. Dr. Mruck introduced the film on Hitler’s Nuremberg rally of 1934 “Triumph of the Will” which was shown at 8 p.m. Saturday night. Dr. Mruck, a National Socialist scholar, grew up in Germany during Hitler’s rise to power, and he himself experienced the effect of the Nazi’s propaganda campaigns. Coupled with this personal experience, Dr. Mruck’s academic background was centered around the studying and teaching of Germany in the 1920’s and 1930’s. He attended Marburg University in Germany from 1946-47. He obtained his doctoral degree in history in 1951 from Goettingen University. Later that year he came to the United States as a State Department Scholar and did post doctoral work at the University of Kentucky. From 1953-65 he taught at NYU’s Washington Square College. In 1967, he began teaching at Towson where he has headed many seminars for undergraduate and graduate students in the field of Germany during the National Socialists rise to power.

Research Award to UB

The Society of the War of 1812 in the State of Maryland, due to its interest in supporting research in American history of the early national period, has entered into an agreement with the University of Baltimore to make available an annual cash award for such research. The award will be presented for the first time this year.

The award which shall be called the SOCIETY OF THE WAR OF 1812 IN THE STATE OF MARYLAND PRIZE IN AMERICAN HISTORY, will go annually to a University of Baltimore undergraduate who writes an acceptable research paper in English on American History for the period of 1789 to 1820.

The paper, though restricted to these 31 years of American history, may select topics drawn from any aspect of American life of the time. Thus, the student may write on politics, foreign affairs, religion, business, technology, biography, genealogy, literature, belles-lettres, medicine, science, family, men and women relations, reform movements, white and black relations, white and Indian relations, ethnic populations, explorations, travel, crime and prisons, war and the military, urban or rural conditions, architecture, fine arts and so forth.

History Department will determine which paper is to receive prize

The contest is open to any full time or part time student, any day or evening student, any freshman, sophomore, junior or senior student, and any student currently enrolled in any of the departments of Liberal Arts and the School of Business.

The faculty of the History department of the University of Baltimore will determine which paper is to receive the prize, and the same faculty will decide if the prize will be awarded each year. A copy of the winning paper will reside in the Society’s archives, following the contest.

Future research papers should be submitted to the Chairman of the History department of the University, William D. Donahoo, during February and March of 1974.
Telethon Week Reaps Rewards

During the week of April 30, "telethon week," the phones in the Alumni Suite were manned by graduates, their wives, and friends who kept the University's outside lines busy with calls for support of the 1973 Roll Call. Each evening that week a group of volunteers, who expressed enthusiasm for the University and a comprehension of its need for financial support, communicated "over the wires" with other graduates hoping to elicit a financial response.

Communicated "over the wires" hoping to elicit a financial response

Members of the telethon team indulged in refreshments and reminiscences, and the work was interspersed with laughter and fun. The success of the telethon—and it was highly successful—was due to the efforts of the following volunteers: John Boring, Myron L. Bronahan, Charles Chapman, George Childs, Joseph Cromwell, Fred Cuomo, James Elliott, Thomas Faby, Lottie Friedler, Warren Fewster, William Grove, William Hallett, Armin Jaeger, William Knoebloch, Al Kolego, Howard Levenson, Danny Moreno, Bernard Murphy, Kenneth Richmond, Ron Starr, Bonnie Smith, Ron Stumpfel, Richard Stutz, and Ron Wolf.

Over one hundred of the alumni who pledged assistance have responded.

The Alumni Association thanks each volunteer, and the Vice President of Development and Alumni Affairs, Charles E. Gresham, Jr., is indeed grateful for the support of the project.

The picture (above) was taken on the evening that the Alumni Chapter of A0Pi undertook the staffing of the phones.

Alumni House Planned

When the Alumni Association looks into the future, it sees an Alumni House which has heretofore been only a dream. With your help our dream can become a reality. The Alumni House would be a place for groups to hold meetings, luncheons, dinners, and recreational activities. It could become a place to house the Association's collection of items representative of the traditions of Baltimore and Maryland. Hopefully this collection will increase as members of the Association and their friends bestow and bequeath objects of beauty and value to be placed in the Alumni House. Especially desirable would be pieces of furniture, antique clocks, and silverware typical of early Baltimore handi-crafts. These would make the Alumni House, the official residence of the Alumni Association, a show place of which every Alumnus could be justly proud. Succeeding issues of the News-magazine will feature specific suggestions for gifts and trusts, both of which will be credited as contributions to the Roll Call. Details pertaining to this project can be obtained from Charles E. Gresham, Jr., Vice President for Development and Alumni Affairs.

Registration for Summer Session

The University of Baltimore began a new registration procedure for its summer sessions on Wednesday, May 30 beginning at 12 noon, at the urban campus Academic Center.

This session marked the beginning of a new registration procedure for the University. Vice President of Administrative Affairs Edward M. Fritz explained that the new process eliminated the necessity of having students secure an advisor's signature on their registration forms, and placed "a greater responsibility" on the students. If students still desire to seek faculty guidance on course selections both the University's College of Liberal Arts staff and School of Business staff were available at specific times.

There are still a few places available for the trip to Majorca which leaves on November 2, 1973, from Friendship Airport, Baltimore. If you need reservation slips, contact the Alumni Office.

A few applications for the bus trip to New York on November 23 will still be accepted. All reservations with checks must be in the Alumni Office prior to September 1. The round trip bus fare is $12.00 per person, and the hotel accommodations are $18.57 per night (single), $23.80 per night (twin), and $31.47 per night (triple). Call the Alumni Office for details.
Class Representatives Spearhead ‘73 Roll Call

This year the Annual Roll Call will be directed by Class Representatives. Representatives have been selected from the first five graduating classes and have been informed concerning the financial situation of the University and the need for alumni support. Pictured are Representatives has been selected from the first five graduating classes and have been directed by Class Representatives.

This year the Annual Roll Call will be directed by Class Representatives. Representatives have been selected from the first five graduating classes and have been directed by Class Representatives. The university's 50th Anniversary, have formed a volunteer group which will represent every graduating class.

Class News

'29 Noah A. Hillman, J.D.; Alderman, Annapolis, Maryland

'30 Gilbert J. Rudolph, B.S. in Mktg.; Sales Manager, mid-West Region, International Salt Company

'31 Sol J. Friedman, J.D.; Judge, Baltimore District Court

'32 H. L. Bux, C. in Acctg.; Vice President, First National Bank

'33 Werner G. Schoeler, J.D.; Presentation, “Problem of Illicit Drugs in Our Society,” Catonsville Business Association

'34 Manley F. Gately, J.D.; President, Maryland National Realty Investors

'35 Joel Goodman, A.A.; Vice President, Tapetex Products Inc., Rochester, New York

'36 Robert W. Schaefer, B.S. in Acctg.; Executive Vice President, First National Bank of Maryland

'37 H. F. Davis, L.L.B.; Treasurer, Davison Chemical Division of W.R. Grace and Company

'38 Benjamin Bronstein, L.L.B.; Deputy State’s Attorney, Baltimore County

'39 John P. Clark, B.S. in Acctg.; Corporate Controller, Londontowne Manufacturing Company

'40 Victor Epstein, B.S. in Trans.; Controller of Operations, Baltimore Area, The Hecht Company

'41 Norman J. Louden, B.S. in Fin.; Treasurer and Senior Vice President, Provident Savings Bank

'42 James J. Murphy, B.S. in Mgmt.; Corporate Secretary, Robert E. Latshaw, Jr. and Co., Towson Realtors

'43 James Edward Riple, B.S. in Bus. Mgmt.; M.S., Recreation, Morgan State College

'44 Myles P. Wagger, B.S. in Bus. Mgmt.; M.S., Recreation, Morgan State College

'45 Virginia Lambrow, J.D.; Vice President, Baltimore Contractors, Inc.

'46 John B. Twamley, B.S. in Bus. Mgmt.; District Sales Manager, Continental Can Co. Bondware Division

'47 Harvey B. Fox, J.D.; Director, Regulations Divisions, Office of Regulations and Rulings, Bureau of Customs

'48 George Kohler, B.S. in Ind. Mgmt.; MBA, Management, Morgan State College


David R. Murison, B.S. in Ind. Mgmt.; Systems Analyst, Maryland Academic Library Center for Automated Processing

David W. Richardson, B.S. in Mgmt.; Vice President, First National Bank of Maryland

Timothy E. Welsh, L.L.B.; Faculty Member, National College for District Attorneys

Francis R. Parker, B.S. in Bus. Mgmt., MBA, Management, Morgan State College

Joel L. Katz, J.D.; Recipient, Man of the Year Award, Alpha Chapter of Nu Beta Epsilon National Law Fraternity

W. Robert Lange, B.S. in Bus. Mgmt.; Recipient, M.D. Degree, Medical College of Wisconsin

William A. Nizer, B.A.; M.S., Urban Secondary Education, Morgan State College

David T. Reinhart, L.L.B.; Executive Vice President, Charter Corporation

George M. Daneker, B.S. in Acctg.; Treasurer, Loyola Federal Savings and Loan Association

Continued on page 12
Missing Persons

Since the notice in the April, 1973 issue of the Newsmagazine, several letters from graduates have been received. Current addresses and positions have been forwarded to the Alumni Office.

Here are excerpts from some of the letters. Reginald S. Holmes of Class '29, said, "I retired in November, 1970, in Cleveland, after serving for 26 years with The United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company and 17 years with The Firemen's Fund American Insurance Company. My wife died in 1966, after 35 happy years, and I live alone in my own "Town House." I moved to Colorado, after retirement, to be near my son and family who are in Littleton. The University has come a long way since the early days when I was a student. The officers certainly deserve congratulations."

Irvin Campbell, Jr. sent us current business addresses on several of his colleagues and stated, "I do not know their home addresses, but so far as I am aware they are all still 'toltering about'."

L. C. Messick, Class of '29, wrote, "I am alive and kicking and have been at the above stand (Fidelity and Deposit Company, Texas-Oklahoma Claim Division) these past 27 years."

Charles W. Spicer, C. in Acctg. '49, called and told us his address and present employment.

The Alumni Office thanks these graduates and the others who were kind enough to contact the Alumni Office.

Below is a continuation of our list of missing persons:

CLASS OF 1938

Addison, Mr. H.B.       Clark, Mr. H.D.       Latinsky, Mr. S.R.
Atkinson, Miss H.       Cramer, Mr. G.H.       Lauermann, Mrs. C.
Berniknow, Mr. P.       Davis, Mr. J.R.       Little, Miss G.M.
Biddle, Mr. F.J.        Deppenbeck, Mr. L.A.     Lynch, Mr. N.B.
Browne, Mr. L.C.        East, Mr. M.L.       Malinow, Mr. J.B.
Eddavich, Mr. S.L.      Egner, Miss L.K.       Malone, Mr. J.W.
Ewell, Mr. J.W.         Eyster, Mr. J.P.       Markham, Mr. M.E.
Ewell, Mrs. J.W.        Fody, Mr. E.P.        O'Connor, Miss M.
Garelick, Mr. S.W.      Gehlach, Mr. C.A.       Olesek, Mr. J.J.
Grober Jr., Mr. E.W.    Harrington, Mr. J.H.     Pinkine, Mr. M.E.
Hodges, Mr. A.M.        Johannes, Mrs. R.G.     Posner, Mr. J.
Languis, Mr. E.J.       Levin, Miss S.W.       Reese, Mr. H.G.
Lucas, Mr. W.L.         McCauley, Mr. W.J.     Vogts, Mr. H.T.
Mechan, Mr. W.L.        Mida, Mr. A.          CLASS OF 1937
Paparelli, Mr. P.D.     Penn, Mr. M.F.        Balzer, Mr. N.S.
Robbins, Mr. F.         Silver, Mr. S.        Barkhead, Mr. H.C.
Smith, Mr. H.M.         Smith, Mr. S.F.        Braun, Mr. J.A.
Smith, Mr. T.F.         Snitzer Jr., Mr. J.A.     Brookman, Mr. A.D.
Stark, Mr. M.L.         Watts Jr., Mr. R.       Cohen, Mr. W.
Wilbur, Miss D.E.       Zobeth, Mr. E.U.      Cole, Mr. M.B.

CLASS OF 1939

Beauchamp, Mr. R.J.     Brodman, Mr. C.L.     Friedmann, Mr. L.J.
Buchta, Col. J.         Dann, Mr. N.            Geddes, Mr. J.A.
Dunn, Mr. A.G.          Eackard, Mr. K.E.       Haviland, Mr. J.B.
Frey, Mr. J.G.          Gary, Mr. L.H.         Hecker, Mr. H.W.
Goldberg, Mr. A.J.      Hanson, Mr. F.        Kenawsher, Mr. W.F.
Harison, Mr. S.G.       Henryeau, Mr. V.S.     Leyh, Mr. W.L.
Hennessey, Mrs. V.S.    Levine, Mrs. B.R.       Mattoon, Mr. E.R.
Ley, Mr. H.H.          Marshall, Miss N.M.     Mettee, Mr. G.D.
Mckenzie, Mr. G.        Miller, Mr. C.E.       Moser, Mr. C.L.
Mckenzie, Mr. G.        Miller, Mr. R.          Murphy, Mr. L.
Morrison, Mr. F.D.      Morrison, Mr. R.L.       Neale Jr., Mr. J.F.
O'Donnell, Mr. J.       O'Reilly, Mr. L.        Peatt, Mr. H.
O'Byrne, Maj. T.W.      Palumbo, Mr. E.J.       Preston, Mr. K.

CLASS OF 1940

Brown, Miss M.N.        Carr, Miss E.A.        Schoen, Mr. J.N.
Dann, Mr. A.J.          Frond, Mr. E.J.        Scholz, Mr. J.W.
Graham, Miss P.M.       Grindle, Mr. E.M.       Siegert, Mr. M.G.
Hanson, Mr. B.H.        Hurley, Mr. S.H.       Siejack, Miss T.A.
Jenner Jr., Mr. F.A.    King, Mr. W.C.         Snyder, Mr. J.P.
Latham Jr., Mr. R.G.    Leveridge Jr., Mr. W.W.    Snyder Jr., Mr. R.G.
Martin, Mr. W.J.        Martin, Mr. W.J.        Tortorici, Mr. V.J.
McCart, Mr. F.          McCan, Mr. J.A.        Wilson, Mr. W.A.
McClimon, Mr. A.        Milikoff, Mr. A.G.      Winfield Jr., Mr. H.G.
Pierce, E.W.            Pickell, Mr. E.L.         Wolf, Mr. H.B.
Rickards Jr., Mr. J.N.  Schaeffer, Mr. E.J.       Wirtz, Mr. L.
Scherkholm, Mr. K.      Seward, Mr. K.C.       Winfield, Mr. E.A.
Stromberg, Mr. K.C.     Trainor, Mr. J.C.       Whitehouse, Mr. A.
Tuft Jr., Mr. E.L.      Vinup, Mr. K.          Wolf, Mr. H.B.
Wood, Mr. S.K.          CLASS OF 1934

Burgholder, Mr. F.D.    Bynnorn Jr., Mr. R.L.
Dunn Jr., Mr. J.F.      Edson, Mr. A.B.        Lynch, Mr. K.J.
Flynn, Miss M.L.        Golensky, Mr. J.        Martin, Mr. C.M.
Goodwin, Mr. F.         Gordon, Mr. B.         Miller, Mr. E.C.
Hitt, Mr. W.C.          Haviland, Mr. J.B.       Miller, Mr. W.M.
Potts, Mr. E.L.          Penn, Mrs. M.L.       Park, Mr. E.C.
Penn, Mr. M.F.          Pickering, Mr. J.R.      Pugh, Miss E.C.
Robbins, Mr. F.         Powell, Mr. R.A.       Read, Mr. L.T.
Sauer, Mr. R.G.         Shakam, Mr. B.B.        Russin, Mr. W.L.
Scheidt, Mr. K.         Smith Jr., Mr. T.J.       Shapiro, Mr. B.B.
Stebbins, Mr. W.T.      Zepp, Mr. H.          Smith Jr., Mr. J.L.

CLASS OF 1935

Beck, Mr. C.T.          Beck, Mrs. P.C.        Lynch, Mr. S.R.
Bonsall, Miss A.L.      Cohen, Mr. M.N.       Latinsky, Mr. S.R.
Cohen, Mr. J.A.         Dunn, Mr. G.M.        Lauermann, Mrs. C.
Dunn, Mr. J.B.          Franklin, Mr. C.       Little, Miss G.M.
Hecker, Mr. H.W.        Gates, Mr. R.C.        Lynch, Mr. N.B.
Kanzischer, Mr. W.F.    Goodwin, Mr. F.       Maline, Mr. J.B.
Levy, Mrs. L.S.         Goodwin, Mr. F.       Markham, Mr. M.E.
Leveridge, Mr. W.W.     Green, Mr. J.J.        O'Connor, Miss M.
Martin, Mr. W.J.        Mueller, Miss V.       Olesek, Mr. J.J.
McCart, Mr. F.          Newton, Mr. C.R.       Pinkine, Mr. M.E.
Mackenzie, Mr. J.K.     Rozenszweig, Mr. R.     Reynolds, Mr. E.
Medders, W.H.         Mueller, Miss V.       Rusk, Mr. W.L.
Mueller, Miss V.        Newton, Mr. C.R.       Sauer, Mr. R.G.
Neale Jr., Mr. J.F.     Olesek, Mr. J.J.       Sauer Jr., Mr. R.G.
Plaut, Mr. J.J.         Olesek, Mr. J.J.       Silver, Mr. A.
Pierce, E.W.            Olesek, Mr. J.J.       Smith, Mr. W.G.
Quinn, Mr. T.J.       Mussler, Miss V.       Smithfield, Mr. I.
Reese, Mr. H.G.        Mussler, Miss V.       Smithfield, Mr. I.
Smithfield, Mr. I.     Neele Jr., Mr. J.F.      Smithfield, Mr. I.
Stebbens, Mr. W.T.     Snyder, Mr. D.P.       Smithfield, Mr. I.
Stevens, Mr. J.J.      Snyder Jr., Mr. W.A.     Smithfield, Mr. I.
Stevens, Mr. J.J.      Snyder Jr., Mr. W.A.     Smithfield, Mr. I.
Stevens, Mr. J.J.      Snyder Jr., Mr. W.A.     Smithfield, Mr. I.
Stevens, Mr. J.J.      Snyder Jr., Mr. W.A.     Smithfield, Mr. I.
Stevens, Mr. J.J.      Snyder Jr., Mr. W.A.     Smithfield, Mr. I.
Continued from page 10

Class News

David B. Fronczak, B.S. in Mgmt.; Staff Sergeant, U.S. Air Force, Inventory Management Specialist
Steven P. Weiss, B.S. in Mkrtg.; Corporate Sales Manager, Middle Atlantic Region, American Express Company, Card Division
Weiley B. Eastman, J.D.; Director, Claim Training, Systems and Training Division, Claim Department, Travelers Insurance Companies
'69 John C. Chanouski, LL.B.; Manager, School of Business of the University; member of the faculty without term;
'71 Wiggo K. Anderson, B.S. in Bus. Ind. Mgmt.; Manager, University
WHEREAS, Mr. Watson's background includes experience in both defensive production problems at the DeLaval Separator Company until 1944, then entered the employ of the Bausch and Lomb Optical Company as a member of the industrial engineering staff assigned to postwar planning, and, in 1950, turned to the field of management consulting and during the ensuing years did a variety of studies and reports in management areas for a number of business firms; and
WHEREAS, Mr. Watson was appointed to a full-time position at the University of Baltimore in 1962, serving as Chairman of both the Marketing and Finance departments for a number of years, subsequently was made an Assistant Professor, in 1966 attained the rank of Associate Professor, was named Assistant Dean of the then School of Business, Industry, and Management in February, 1969, was appointed Acting Dean in July, 1969, and, effective February 1, 1970, was made Dean and appointed a member of the faculty without term; and
WHEREAS, Mr. Watson always has performed his duties in such a way as to benefit the University of Baltimore, has devoted himself to the development of the School of Business and, has made many contributions to the University's programs; and
WHEREAS, Mr. Watson plans to retire as Dean on July 1, 1973, and to remain with the University on the full-time teaching staff as Professor of Management; now therefore, be it RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby expresses its pleasure in knowing that Mr. Watson will continue his association with the University as a member of the faculty and extends to him its best wishes for his happiness in this most important work.

Be It Resolved

As of June 1, of this year, Dean Harry P. Watson retired from his position as Dean of the University's School of Business. Although leaving the administrative position that he held for seven years, Dean Watson will continue his Fall to teach in the school. The University's Board of Trustees passed a resolution honoring the Dean. Its text follows:

MARRIAGES:

Ann deSales Buchness to Joseph John Beling, Jr., 'B'S' in Mgmt. '69

BIRTHS:

Jana Lyn Lipshultz, weight 8 lbs. 5 oz. was born on April 12, 1973, Proud Parents: Susan and Frank L. Lipshultz, J.D. '71

DEATHS:

'43 William F. McDonald, LL. B.
'48 Edward T. Scanlon, J.D.
'52 Michael John DellaPete, B.S. in Ind. Mgmt.
'58 Terrence J. Murphy, LL. B.
'59 Helen A. Slivka, LL. B.
'63 John J. Gill, B.S. in Bus. Mgmt. Tyler H. Kendig, J.D.

WHEREAS, Mr. Harry P. Watson has been a member of the faculty of the School of Business of the University of Baltimore since the fall of 1961, when he joined the staff as a part-time instructor; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Watson holds the A.B. degree from Princeton University and the M.S. degree in Educational Administration and Supervision from Syracuse University, and has done graduate work in business and economics at the University of Maryland and at The Johns Hopkins University; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Watson's background includes experience in both education and business, as he was, successively, high school teacher, vice principal, and principal in New York State until 1942, when he left the educational field to work in wartime industry, where he was involved in defense production problems at the DeLaval Separator Company until 1944, then entered the employ of the Bausch and Lomb Optical Company as a member of the industrial engineering staff assigned to postwar planning, and, in 1950, turned to the field of management consulting and during the ensuing years did a variety of studies and reports in management areas for a number of business firms; and

RESOLVED, That the Board of Trustees hereby expresses its pleasure in knowing that Mr. Watson will continue his association with the University as a member of the faculty and extends to him its best wishes for his happiness in this most important work.

University Picture Available

The University of Baltimore is pleased to announce that pictures of the Academic Center are now available at the Stieff Co. in Baltimore. The Academic Center is hand-painted on glass (9½" x 14½") and framed in silver. This picture may also be obtained with a mirror. Prices are $27.50 for the picture, $39.95 for the picture with a mirror. The University does not handle these items. They may be obtained directly from Stieff Co.
President Turner and Dr. Thomas G. Pullen admire a portrait of the former University president which hangs in the University’s Board room. The portrait which was painted by Baltimore artist, Henry Cooper, was made possible through gifts to the University from the Board of Trustees, honoring Dr. Pullen, who served as president from 1964 to 1969.

Judge Albert L. Sklar “Alumnus of the Year”

Seventh Annual Award Dinner

University of Baltimore Alumni Association honors Albert L. Sklar as “Alumnus of the Year” at the seventh Annual Award Dinner May 30, 1973.

In addition to the accolades paid to Judge Sklar by the persons listed in the program, a resolution from the West Coast Chapter of the Alumni Association was read by Charles Gillam, Jr., a member of the Board of Governors, in which congratulations and appreciation were expressed.
NEW LIBERAL ARTS FACULTY

Northern Michigan University from 1966 to 1968 in the Department of Speech. She was also an instructor in Basic Communications, Mass Media, Semantics, Humanities at the Communications/Humanities Division of the University of Toledo, Community and Technical College. While there, she was a founding member of the College Arts Council and research consultant for a four-hour color film documentary produced by WBGU-TV for the Corporation for Public Broadcasting from 1969 to 1971.

She is currently engaged in research on the effectiveness of mirror image TV in a basic Speech course. She has also participated in community theatre volunteer work for the Maryland Center for Public Broadcasting. Dr. O'Sullivan holds memberships in the Speech Communication Association, the Eastern States Speech Association, the Smithsonian Museum, and the National Trust for Historic Preservation.

Dr. Doris Powell, appointed as an Associate Professor in the Department of Science, Natural Sciences Division, earned her B.S. and M.S. degrees for its alumni over the past few years. Since the 1970 merger with Eastern College, the University of Puget Sound, Tacoma, Washington, and her Ph.D. (Zoology) at the University of Washington.

Dr. Powell’s non-teaching professional experience includes research at Hawaii Marine Laboratory and Friday Harbor Laboratories. In addition, she taught Human Physiology, Vertebrate Physiology, Genetics, Hygiene, Comparative Anatomy, Biology, Mammalian Physiology Genetics, and Natural History. Also, she has served as a faculty member at the University of Washington, the University of Montana, the University of Puget Sound, American kis Lisesi in Istanbul, Turkey where she was head of the Science Department, and Central Michigan University.

Dr. Powell has published many physiological articles and has presented papers at national professional meetings. She is a member of Sigma Xi, A.A.A.S., and the American Physiological Society. She was the recipient of a Post-Doctoral Research Fellowship, National Institutes of Health in 1954, and of a grant from the National Muscular Dystrophy Research Foundation in 1956. Her present research in hypertrophy and atrophy of denervated skeletal muscles is supported by a grant from the National Science Foundation to Arthur W. Martin of the University of Washington.

Prior to coming to the University of Baltimore, Dr. Powell was employed as a consultant for the Department of Zoology at the University of Washington in Seattle.

Recollections of one’s alma mater tend to be limited not only to the confines of the mind’s eye but to the timeless continuity of one’s experiences in the classrooms and hallowed halls where college careers are built. Long after “old main” is torn down, a alum remembers the exact setting of his best (and worst) classes; though the cafeteria be long gone, one can still recollect the laughter and shenanigans at lunch.

While the University’s Howard Hall still is a setting for classes, how many UB grads remember pitching horse-shoes in the congested halls there? To paraphrase a bit, memories may linger, but the University grows on and on.

In 1925 at the University’s beginnings, a four story building on St. Paul Street facing Mt. Vernon Place served as its “headquarters”. The 30 students enrolled in September of that year made the trek to the heart of the City with little difficulty and they enjoyed something that the University has continually sought since — adequate room. But the student body did soon outgrow the St. Paul Street location and, in the Fall of 1929, the University bought the building formerly housing the Baltimore College of Dentistry and moved to what is now known as Howard Hall.

The University remained there, except for a brief stay at a temporary annex at St. Paul and Centre Streets, until 1947 when the University of Baltimore became the third largest college in Maryland with more than 2,300 students. To climax that year of development, the University purchased in April of that year the former Baltimore Athletic Club building then described as a “six story building which provides excellent recreational facilities as well as a cafeteria, several classrooms, a gymnasium, lounges and offices”. That building, Charles Hall, now houses 28 classrooms and various administrative offices, including the President’s, and the Data Processing Center, as well.

Embracing the European concept of an urban University (a university) the University of Baltimore’s leaders sought to build a campus in the City and to still be able to provide an arena for sporting events.

In 1952, the University obtained the 45 acre tract from old St. Paul’s School. This property, bounded by Belvedere Avenue, Greenspring Avenue, and West Rogers Avenue, consists of athletic fields, the original stone building, and a gymnasium. Until the University completed its new Academic Center, the BU Basketball team played all of its home games at the Mt. Washington gym. At one time, it is theorized that the land housed two barns and several greenhouses in addition to the stone building. The three wings were added onto the original structure during the thirty years that the church school owned the property to accommodate the growth of the school. There is still an original stone terrace dating back to the manor house days of the area which is practically covered with underbrush and weeds leading away from the house.

To look at the University’s Mt. Washington campus from afar, it is at first reminiscent of a scene from “Gone With the Wind”. As you approach the tree-lined drive from the Rogers Avenue entrance, the first visible edifice is an old white stone building surrounded by trees of varying size and shape and a huge overhanging porch that runs practically the entire length of the structure. Contrary to its peaceful setting, however, the University’s Mt. Washington campus and athletic center is never without some life around or within it.

Exchange Your Degree

As part of its service to the alumni, the University has exchanged a number of degrees for its alumni over the past few years. Since the 1970 merger with Eastern College, the University of Baltimore has exchanged a total of 1613 LLB degrees for Juris Doctor degrees, over 50 other diplomas from Eastern College and more recently, nearly 200 exchanges have come from the Baltimore College of Commerce. Totaled these transactions amount to close to 2000 degrees exchanged by the University.

If you would like to order a diploma from UB to replace the one you hold presently, send your inquiries to the office of records and transcripts at the University. Six to eight weeks are required for delivery of the completed diploma and a check for $25.00 must accompany the request.
Located five minutes from the University's urban central campus the facility is ideal for both practices and home games of the University's varsity soccer, lacrosse, and baseball team "The Bees". It is also a "Bees'" home for some three and one half years for the reservists.

A typical schedule last year for the reserved camp included practice sessions and scrimmages of the Baltimore Bullets. Another urban school, Bay College, and its winning basketball team, practiced at the gym as much as four times a week. All of the Bay College home games were played there as well. On weekends the shouts of young children at play replaced those of professional athletes as the Northwest Baltimore Corporation operated retreats and planning sessions at the campus. Park School brought its students to the Mt. Washington facility on a weekly basis and, with the Spring, the Towson Lacrosse Club practiced there on a regular basis.

In 1965, the University's Langsdale Library was built and it now houses one of the State's largest collections - 125,000 volumes. Prior to that time, the entire collection had been housed in a small wing of the second floor in Charles Hall. The Library also shelters the School of Law's temporary offices. In 1970, with the University's merger with Eastern College and the Mt. Vernon School of Law, the University acquired Madison Hall which is now known as the Baltimore Region Institutional Study Center (BRISC). Officially opened in April of this year, the three story early Baltimore brownstone operates as a facility geared to institutional research.

2286th Air Force Reserve Specialist Training Center. It operated as both administrative headquarters and training center for some three and one half years for the reservists.

A typical schedule last year for the reserved camp included practice sessions and scrimmages of the Baltimore Bullets. Another urban school, Bay College, and its winning basketball team, practiced at the gym as much as four times a week. All of the Bay College home games were played there as well. On weekends the shouts of young children at play replaced those of professional athletes as the Northwest Baltimore Corporation operated retreats and planning sessions at the campus. Park School brought its students to the Mt. Washington facility on a weekly basis and, with the Spring, the Towson Lacrosse Club practiced there on a regular basis.

In 1965, the University's Langsdale Library was built and it now houses one of the State's largest collections - 125,000 volumes. Prior to that time, the entire collection had been housed in a small wing of the second floor in Charles Hall. The Library also shelters the School of Law's temporary offices. In 1970, with the University's merger with Eastern College and the Mt. Vernon School of Law, the University acquired Madison Hall which is now known as the Baltimore Region Institutional Study Center (BRISC). Officially opened in April of this year, the three story early Baltimore brownstone operates as a facility geared to institutional research.

The old gym at Mt. Washington

Located five minutes from the University's urban central campus the facility is ideal for both practices and home games of the University's varsity soccer, lacrosse, and baseball team "The Bees". It is also a "Bees'" home for some three and one half years for the reservists.

A typical schedule last year for the reserved camp included practice sessions and scrimmages of the Baltimore Bullets. Another urban school, Bay College, and its winning basketball team, practiced at the gym as much as four times a week. All of the Bay College home games were played there as well. On weekends the shouts of young children at play replaced those of professional athletes as the Northwest Baltimore Corporation operated retreats and planning sessions at the campus. Park School brought its students to the Mt. Washington facility on a weekly basis and, with the Spring, the Towson Lacrosse Club practiced there on a regular basis.

In 1965, the University's Langsdale Library was built and it now houses one of the State's largest collections - 125,000 volumes. Prior to that time, the entire collection had been housed in a small wing of the second floor in Charles Hall. The Library also shelters the School of Law's temporary offices. In 1970, with the University's merger with Eastern College and the Mt. Vernon School of Law, the University acquired Madison Hall which is now known as the Baltimore Region Institutional Study Center (BRISC). Officially opened in April of this year, the three story early Baltimore brownstone operates as a facility geared to institutional research.

The old automobile club of Maryland building, located opposite the Maryland Institute, was razed earlier this year to make way for a temporary faculty parking area. The University, however, is considering this area as one possibility for a future law school site. In anticipation of a separate law school facility, the University obtained the beautiful old marble columns from the Maryland Court of Appeals building in Annapolis, prior to that building's demolition, and is currently storing them for future incorporation in designs for a new law school.

In 1971, as anyone who drives up Charles Street at the rush hour knows, the University opened its prize-winning academic center. Although the history of this building is well known in Baltimore (so much so that the University was invited to be included in the 1972 Holly Tour), it bears repetition (at least in an abridged fashion). Formerly known as the Kelly Buick Building, the academic center began as a kind of recreational haven. Known as the "Garage", the building was advertised as "the most unique, and up-to-date place of amusement for ladies and gentlemen in the world". At one point, it contained bowling alleys, a billiard room, a roller skating rink, shuffle boards, a women's gymnasium, the club rooms for the Automobile Club of Maryland, an assembly room for private and public meetings and banquet parties, a first class dining room, a waiting room, and several women's "retiring" rooms. The Garage was labeled "the most popular building in the city" — a title which was substantiated by the fact that on several special occasions as many as twenty to twenty-five thousand people visited it in a single day!

The University has continued to expand its facilities through gifts as well. In 1972, Alpha Omega Pi, a university fraternity, gave the school its fraternity building, located on 215 Mt. Royal. Tentative plans for this Fall are designed to make this building available for student housing.

Several additional purchases of the University, including the property from which Pat Hays Buick now operates, combined with the fact that the University will become state-affiliated in 1975, make the future development and continued growth of the urban campus a certainty.
Mr. Ali Kamyab recently donated to the University the prayer rug that he is holding (above). A student in economics, Mr. Kamyab attended the Anne Arundel Community College prior to coming to the University, and is hoping to be enrolled in a Masters (economics) program at George Washington University this coming Fall. The prayer rug or wall hanging is handmade and comes from his small village in Iran.